L i m e St o n e , We're Putting @ We’re Turning .\ We're Committed
\ Wellness First Innovation into Action %) to Collaboration

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

AGENDA - AUDIT COMMIT

Monday, May 6, 2024 - 5:30 PM
Limestone Education Centre

220 Portsmouth Avenue, Kingston, ON
Virtual Link: https://bit.ly/LDSBAuditMtgMay6-23

PUBLIC MEETING - 5:30 PM

Acknowledgement of Territory: “The Limestone District School Board is situated on the
traditional territories of the Anishinaabe and Haudenosaunee. We acknowledge their
enduring presence on this land, as well as the presence of Métis, Inuit and other First
Nations from across Turtle Island. We honour their cultures and celebrate their
commitment to this land.”

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
3. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

4. REPORTS FOR INFORMATION

4.1. Fraud Reporting Administrative Procedure, Craig Young, Superintendent of
Corporate Services (Pages 3-6)

4.2. 2023-2024 Regional Internal Audit Plan, Genevieve Segu, Regional Internal Audit
Manager and Pasquale L’Orfano, Internal Auditor (Pages 7-8)

4.3. Audit Planning Report for The Year Ending August 31, 2024, Lori Huber, KPMG
External Auditor (Pages 9-43)
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@ Limestone

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

5. OTHER BUSINESS
6. FUTURE MEETING DATES

TBD

*In accordance with the Education Act, Section 207(2) a meeting of a committee of a board including a
committee of the whole board, may be closed to the public when the subject under consideration
involves,

a) The security of the property of the board;

b) The disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect of a meeting of the
board or committee, an employee or prospective employee of the board or a pupil or his or her
parent or guardian;

c) The acquisition or disposal of a school site;

d) Decisions in respect of negotiations with employee of the board; or

e) Litigation affecting the board.

7. MOTION TO MOVE INTO PRIVATE SESSION

8. PRIVATE DISCUSSION BETWEEN AUDITORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The committee will excuse staff in order to provide for a private conversation with both the
external and internal auditors.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Limestone District School Board
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Administrative Procedure 5XX =\
Fraud Reporting

The administrative procedure outlined below is developed to protect the Limestone District School
Board (LDSB) against fraudulent activities, safeguarding its revenue, assets, proprietary information, and
other resources. It delineates specific guidelines, assigns responsibilities, and charts the processes for
the detection and investigation of fraud within the organization. LDSB's fraud prevention and
investigation procedures underscores our unwavering commitment to transparency, accountability, and
integrity in all organizational operations.

1. Definition and Classification of Fraud

1.1. Fraud encompasses any deceptive or unauthorized action undertaken by an individual or group
with the intent of personal gain.

1.2. Types of Fraud include, but are not limited to:

Fabrication, alteration, or destruction of any financial document or record, including but not

limited to cheques, timesheets, contracts, and accounting records.

e Submission or authorization of false financial claims.

e Authorization of payment for undelivered goods or unrendered services.

e Acceptance of material value from entities conducting business with the LDSB, contravening
Administrative Procedure 403 - Conflict of Interest.

e Fraudulent activities involving computer systems, including data manipulation and
unauthorized software use.

e Violation of LDSB policies, legal statutes, or misuse of organization resources.

e Discrepancies in financial transaction management or reporting.

e Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive information.
2. Roles and Responsibilities
2.1. Supervisory and management staff are tasked with establishing and maintaining robust internal

controls to mitigate and detect fraud, ensuring operational integrity, asset protection, and
accurate financial reporting.

Limestone District School Board

Limestone District School Board is situated on traditional territories of the Anishinaabe & Haudenosaunee.
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Administrative Procedure 5XX \
Fraud Reporting

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

All employees are obliged to report any suspected fraudulent activity immediately upon
discovery.

Reports of fraud must be made impartially and in good faith.

Investigators must disclose any potential conflicts of interest, ensuring transparency and
integrity in the investigative process.

Prompt measures must be taken to halt ongoing fraudulent activities and secure pertinent
records upon fraud detection.

3. Fraud Investigation Protocol

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

Immediate investigation is imperative following a fraud report, with a commitment to
confidentiality and integrity.

The identity of all parties involved in a fraud investigation shall be protected to the fullest extent
permissible by law.

Disclosure of investigation outcomes shall be limited to individuals with a legitimate need for
such information.

Information obtained during investigations may be disclosed to external agencies as required by
law.

Employees found guilty of fraud will face disciplinary actions, potentially including termination,
in accordance with Administrative Procedure 415 — Progressive Discipline.

4. Reporting Procedures

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Employees detecting fraud must report to their immediate supervisor or, if the supervisor is
implicated, to their Superintendent.

Subsequent notifications should be directed to the Superintendent of Corporate Services and/or
the Superintendent of Human Resources.

Non-employee suspicions of fraud should follow a similar reporting path.

Special reporting protocols are established for instances involving high-level positions, ensuring
direct communication with the Director of Education or the Regional Internal Audit Committee.

2
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Administrative Procedure 5XX

\DS8,

Fraud Reporting

5.

Administrative Procedure: Fraud Reporting May 2024Page 5 of 43

Protection Against Reprisals

5.1. The LDSB strictly prohibits retaliation against individuals for engaging in the reporting or
investigation process.

5.2. Disciplinary measures against reprisal actions underscore the organization's commitment to a
fair and just investigative process.

Post-Investigation Risk Assessment

6.1. Following an investigation, a comprehensive risk assessment will be conducted to prevent
future incidents, enhancing organizational resilience against fraud.

Education and Training
7.1. LDSB is committed to ongoing education and training on fraud awareness and prevention,

ensuring all employees are equipped to recognize and respond to fraudulent activities
effectively.

Procedure Review

8.1. This procedure is subject to regular review and updates to maintain its efficacy and alignment
with best practices and regulatory requirements.

3
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Administrative Procedure 5XX \
Fraud Reporting

Appendix A -Fraud Notification Process

who is suspected of Fraud whao is Notified

Director of
Education

Regional Internal

Audit Committee

Superintendent of
Corporate Services/

Human Resournces

4
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4‘ INTERNAL

'A AUDIT TEAM

Subject: 2023-24 Regional Internal Audit Plan
Presented by: Genevieve Segu, Regional Internal Audit Manager
Pasquale L’orfano, Internal Auditor

Meeting Date: May 6%, 2024

Purpose

To provide the Audit Committee with an update from the Regional Internal Audit Manager (RIAM) on
the progress of the 2023-24 RIAT work.

This is in alignment with Ontario Regulation 361/10: Audit Committees (9) Duties of an Audit
Committee 3(2&3).

Content

23 — 24 Regional Internal Audit Plan Update

The Audit Committee approved the 2023-24 Audit Plan at the September 11, 2023 meeting.
The following presents an update on the engagements:

Planning 2023-24 Strategic Risk Assessment January 24: invite sent
for risk identification

In accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors | session (March 21%,
Standards, RIAT is mandated to perform a cyclical | 2024, Ottawa)

risk assessment with the goal to align their future

work with the results. In doing so, Management March 21: Risk

also gains a deeper understanding and a Identification session
formalization of their risks at the regional and local | conducted

level.

Next Step: Conduct Risk
Assessment with School
Board on June 17t 2024.
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4 INTERNAL
AUDIT TEAM
A

In Progress 2023-24 Special Education Benchmarking January 2024: Analysing
EFIS and OnSIS data.
Management and AC at each board often ask how

they perform compare to others in the province. April 2024: Terms of
The purpose of this project is to share comparative | Reference issued to
metrics with participating Boards to highlight School Board

potential differences and outliers that could be
used to investigate and report on.

Cyclical Follow-up Procedures Not needed at this time.
This is a recurring item on RIAT’s annual plan.

RIAT continues to follow-up on the remaining
recommendation, as they come due.

As Needed Management Request Engagement None Requested to-date

To cover any important items that may be required
to during the school year.

Recommendation

That the Limestone District School Board Audit Committee receives for information the May 6" 2024
RIAT update.
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KPMG

Limestone District
School Board

Audit Planning Report
for the year ending August 31, 2024

Knrs <<
L

Prepared on April 29, 2024 for the Audit Committee meeting
on May 6, 2024

kpmg.ca/audit


https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit.html

KPMG contacts

Key contacts in connection with this engagement

Lori Huber, CPA, CA, LPA
Lead Audit Engagement Partner

613-541-7320
lahuber@kpmag.ca

Anoop Sebastian Michael, CPA, CGA, FCCA (UK)
Audit Manager

613-541-7327

anoopmichael@kpmg.ca



mailto:lahuber@kpmg.ca
mailto:anoopmichael@kpmg.ca

Table of contents Digitaluse

Information

This Audit Planning Report
is also available as a

“hyper-linked” PDF
Highlights Audit strategy 1 0 Risk assessment document.

If you are reading in
electronic form (e.g. In
“Adobe Reader” or “Board
Books”), clicking on the

Key milestones and Audit quality Independence home symbol_ on ’Fhe top
deliverables right corner will bring you

back to this slide.

2 0 Appendices :

Click on any item in the
table of contents to
navigate to that section.

The purpose of this report is to assist you, as a member of the Audit Committee, in your review of the plan for our audit of the financial statements. This
report is intended solely for the information and use of Management, the Audit Committee, and the Board of Trustees and should not be used for any other
purpose or any other party. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this report to the
Audit Committee has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose.

KkPMG 3
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m Audit strategy Risk assessment Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices

Audit highlights

Audit strategy

Newly effective
accounting
standards

Newly effective
auditing
standards

C- No matters to report ‘) Matters to report — see link for details

Our audit of the financial statements of the Limestone District School Board (the “School Board") as at and for the year ending August 31, 2024 will be
performed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (CASSs).

®
{b Engagement letter

-) Risk of management override of controls

Materiality $8,000,000

-) Involvement of others

-) Presumed risk of fraudulent revenue recognition

P &
> &

_ Other significant risks

.) There are newly effecting accounting standards &
in the current year:

«  Amendments to PS 3400, Revenue assessment
» PS 3160, Public Private Partnerships (“P3s”)
* PSG-8, Purchased Intangibles)

Risk

@
.) Other risks of material misstatement {b

« Grant revenue, accounts receivable and deferred revenue

« Payroll expenses

» Operating expenses

+ Capital assets and deferred capital contributions
+ Asset retirement obligations

+ Employee future benefit liabilities

* Financial reporting

-) Newly effective changes to auditing standards

P &

-) Upcoming changes to auditing standards

4
Page 12 of 43

®



Risk assessment

Technology highlights

We have technologies in our toolkit to continue to enhance the quality and effectiveness of the audit.

Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices

Summary of

advanced
technologies

Q

@o

()
KPMG Clara @

-
IDEA — Journal Entry Routine — This tool was used to evaluate the

completeness of the journal entry population through a roll-forward of 100%
\of the general ledger accounts.

DataSnipper — an Excel based audit tool, which allows to extract, search, A
document and review PDF documents. The tool also provides automated
document matching features allowing you to match Excel data with
\underlying source documents. )
~N

DataSnipper — Financial Statement Suite - This solution was used to
process financial statements in order to automate the verification of
mathematical accuracy, prior period consistency and internal consistency of
\_the audited financial statements. )

KPMG Clara Workflows and Analytics — This suite of available analytics
tools was used to assist with risk assessment, planning and substantive
\procedures throughout the course of the audit.

J
( )
Offset Remover - This tool automates the removal of offsetting entries in a
dataset, allowing for the cleansing of large source material.
. J
-
MUS and KSP - These tools are KPMG designed routines used to select
samples based on size risk to meet the requirements of our engagement in
the most efficiency matter.
\. J

Page 13 of 43
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m Audit strategy Risk assessment

Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices

Updates to our prior year audit plan

Newly effective accounting standards

Newly effective accounting standards

Newly effective accounting standards

Accounting changes

The amendments to PS 3400, Revenue, become effective for this year end (fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023).

° The standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue recognition and its
measurement.
° The standard notes that in the case of revenues arising from an exchange transaction, a public sector entity must ensure the

recognition of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.

° The standard notes that unilateral revenue arises when no performance obligations are present, and recognition occurs when
there is authority to record the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to the revenue.

PS 3160, Public Private Partnerships (“P3s”) becomes effective for this year end (fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023).

° This standard includes new requirements for the recognition, measurement and classification of infrastructure procured through

a public private partnership. The standard may be applied retroactively or prospectively.

° The standard notes that recognition of infrastructure by the public sector entity would occur when it controls the purpose and
use of the infrastructure, when it controls access and the price, if any, charged for use, and it controls any significant interest

accumulated in the infrastructure when the P3 ends.

° The public sector entity recognizes a liability when it needs to pay cash or non-cash consideration to the private sector partner

for the infrastructure.

PSG-8, Purchased Intangibles, becomes effective for this year end (fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023).

° The guideline allows public sector entities to recognize intangibles purchased through an exchange transaction. The definition

of an asset, the general recognition criteria and GAAP hierarchy are used to account for purchased intangibles.

° Narrow scope amendments were made to PS 1000 Financial statement concepts to remove the prohibition to recognize
purchased intangibles and to PS 1201 Financial statement presentation to remove the requirement to disclose purchased
intangibles not recognized.

° The guideline can be applied retroactively or prospectively.

Page 14 of 43

6

®



Audit strategy
Materiality

Risk assessment

We initially determine materiality at a level at which we consider that
misstatements could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users. Determining materiality is a matter of
professional judgement, considering both quantitative and qualitative
factors, and is affected by our perception of the common financial
information needs of users of the financial statements as a group. We
do not consider the possible effect of misstatements on specific
individual users, whose needs may vary widely.

We reassess materiality throughout the audit and revise materiality if
we become aware of information that would have caused us to
determine a different materiality level initially.

KPMG

Key milestones and deliverables

Audit quality Independence Appendices

Plan and perform the audit

We initially determine materiality to provide a basis for:

» Determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures;
+ Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement; and

» Determining the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.

We design our procedures to detect misstatements at a level less than
materiality in individual accounts and disclosures, to reduce to an
appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as
a whole.

Evaluate the effect of misstatements

We also use materiality to evaluate the effect of:
* |dentified misstatements on our audit; and

» Uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in
forming our opinion.

7
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Highlights

Risk assessment

Audit strategy

Initial materiality

Initial materiality has been set using the prior year audited financial statements. Performance materiality has been set at 75% of materiality or $6,000,000. Our assessment of misstatements,
if any, in amounts or disclosures at the completion of our audit will include the consideration of both qualitative and quantitative factors.

e e ————— -

Materiality
$8.000,000

(Prior year: $8,000,000)

% of Benchmark

. 0

S L (I
Materiality as a percentage of expenses - 2.8%
prior year 070

% of Other Relevant Metrics

Materiality as a percentage of total g”"@lﬂﬂl
revenues - curent year IIIIfIIIIIIIIIﬁ
Materiality as a percentage of total
revenues - prior year

planning purposes remains appropriate.

Key milestones and deliverables

m © 2024 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved

Appendices @

Audit quality Independence

We will report:

Corrected audit misstatements

Uncorrected audit misstatements

2| Errors and omissions in disclosure (corrected and uncorrected)

Prior year total expenses

$303,000,000
(Prior year: $288,000,000)

Prior year total revenues

$303,000,000
(Prior year: $293,000,000)

Professional standards require us to re-assess materiality at the completion of our audit based on period-end results or new information in order to confirm whether the amount determined for

8
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Highlights Audit strategy Risk assessment Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices

The following parties are involved in the audit of the financial statements:

Involved party Nature and extent of planned involvement

Management expert — Actuary We will obtain and leverage the work of management’s expert, the Actuary, related to the calculation of the
liability for employee benefit liabilities. Refer to page 14 for additional details.

KPMG IT Audit Professionals KPMG IT audit professionals are involved to understand the entity level controls surrounding the information
systems used by the School Board.

KPMG :

Page 17 of 43
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Highlights Audit strategy Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices @
RISk assessment summary

Our planning begins with an assessment of risks of material misstatement in your financial statements.

We draw upon our understanding of the School Board and its environment (e.g. the industry, the wider economic environment in which the business operates,
etc.), our understanding of the School Board’s components of its system of internal control, including our business process understanding.

Management override of controls Significant
Legend:
o Grant revenue, accounts receivable and deferred v Base PRESUMED RISK OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT
revenue
® OTHER AREA OF FOCUS
® Payroll expenses v Base
® Operating expenses v Base
e Capital assets and deferred capital contributions 4 Base
® Employee future benefit liabilities v Base
® Asset retirement obligation v Base
® Financial reporting v Base

These areas of focus may be revised because of new transactions or events at the School Board, or changes in systems, people or structure, and/or the results of our audit
procedures. We will report any changes to the Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

kbinG 1
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Highlights

Audit strategy Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence

Significant risks

@ Management Override of Controls (non-rebuttable significant risk of material misstatement) Sof

Why is it significant?

Presumption
of the risk of fraud
resulting from
management
override of
controls

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate
fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting
records and prepare fraudulent financial statements
by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively. Although the level of risk of
management override of controls will vary from entity
to entity, the risk nevertheless is present in all entities. .

m © 2024 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved

Our planned response

As this presumed risk of material misstatement due to
fraud is not rebuttable, our audit methodology
incorporates the required procedures in professional
standards to address this risk. These procedures include:

RISK OF

FRAUD

testing of journal entries and other adjustments,
performing a retrospective review of estimates

evaluating the business rationale of significant
unusual transactions.

Appendices @
<4

Advanced
technologies

Our KPMG Clara Journal
Entry Analysis Tool assists in
the performance of detailed
journal entry testing based on
engagement-specific risk
identification and
circumstances. Our tool
provides auto-generated
journal entry population
statistics and focusses our
audit effort on journal entries
that are riskier in nature.

>

Click to learn more

11
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Highlights Audit strategy Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices
Significant risks (continued)
RISK OF
-

@ Presumed risk of fraud involving improper revenue recognition (rebuttable significant risk of material misstatement) Sof
FRAUD

Why is it significant?

Presumption
of the risk of fraud
involving
improper revenue
recognition

Relevant inherent risk factors affecting our risk assessment

Generally, there are pressures or incentives on management to commit fraudulent financial reporting through inappropriate revenue recognition when performance is measured in
terms of year-over-year revenue growth or profit.

As is common with government and not-for-profit organizations, we have not identified any risk of material misstatement resulting from fraudulent revenue
recognition, and as a result have rebutted this fraud risk.

The School Board is not publicly traded, is not incentivized to meet analyst expectations of revenue, and does not sell goods or services with complex contracts as its main line of
business. The School Board receives most of its revenue through government funding which is generally viewed as non-judgmental and routine. Any risks related to adjustments
made to the financial statement amounts at year end are addressed in the risk identified below and as part of our audit approach.

Our audit approach

The fraud risk related to revenue recognition has been rebutted for the purposes of this audit.

KbinG 1
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Highlights

Audit strategy Key milestones and deliverables

Grant revenue
(including related receivables, payables and
deferred revenue)

Payroll expenses
(including related accruals)

Operating expenses
(including related accruals)

Capital assets and deferred capital
contributions
(including related amortization)

Risk due to error

Base

Base

Base

Base

Audit quality Independence Appendices

Audit approach

®

We will complete substantive audit including confirmation of cash flows d@
the year and verification of any significant performance criteria.

We will complete analytical and substantive procedures to ensure appropriate
recognition of revenue and related payables, deferrals and receivables, as
required.

We will perform substantive procedures to address the eligibility of costs
incurred.

g

We will test and evaluate internal controls related to payroll input, including
authorization and payment controls.

We will perform substantive audit procedures over salaries and benefits,
including related accruals.

Significant payroll-related accruals will be recalculated and vouched to
supporting documentation, including grievances, severance costs and
retroactive pay including Bill 124, as applicable.

We will perform substantive procedures over operating expenses and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Perform a search for unrecorded liabilities and recalculate significant
accruals.

Vouch a sample of expenses to supporting documentation.

Vouch significant additions and disposals to supporting documentation,
including additions to work-in-progress.

Review of repair and maintenance expenses for proper accounting treatment.
Perform analytical audit procedures to ensure adequacy of amortization and
amortization of deferred capital contributions.

Inquire as to the status of major capital projects.

Inquire as to the impairment of any capital assets.

Review presentation of capital assets note disclosure. 13
Page 21 of 43



Highlights

Other areas of focus (continued)

Employee future benefit liabilities

Asset retirement obligation

Financial reporting

Risk due to error

Base

Base

Base

Audit quality Independence Appendices

Audit approach

We will obtain the School Board’s most recent actuarial
valuation/extrapolation report and will agree the details to the provision and
applicable note disclosure related to employee future benefit accruals.

We will perform required accounting estimates procedures per the auditing
estimates standards including gaining a detailed understanding of the
process used by Management to make the assumptions and develop
procedures to test the reasonableness of the assumptions, completeness and
accuracy of the data and resulting amount recorded in the School Board’s
financial statements

In the post-implementation year, update management’s process on ensuring
this calculation is complete and accurate.

Obtain management’s calculation of the asset retirement obligation liability
and perform substantive testing on any changes during the year, including the
impacts of any inflation, remediation or construction activity.

Review by the engagement partner to ensure the disclosure is consistent with
current public sector accounting, disclosure requirements and industry
practice.

14
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Highlights Audit strategy Key milestones and deliverables Audit quality Independence Appendices
Requiredinquiries of the audit committee

Inquires regarding related
parties and significant
unusual transactions

Inquiries regarding risk
assessment, including
fraud risks

Inquiries regarding
company processes

*  What are the Audit Committee’s views about fraud + Is the Audit Committee aware of tips or + Is the Audit Committee aware of any instances where
risks, including management override of controls, in complaints regarding the School Board’s the School Board entered into any significant unusual
the School Board? And have you taken any actions to financial reporting (including those transactions?
respond to any identified fraud risks? received through the Audit Committee’s

internal whistleblower program, if such *  Whatis the Audit Committee’s understanding of the

+ Is the Audit Committee aware of, or has the Audit programs exist)? If so, the Audit School Board’s relationships and transactions with
Committee identified, any instances of actual, Committee’s responses to such tips and related parties that are significant to the School
suspected, or alleged fraud, including misconduct or complaints? Board?
unethical behavior related to financial reporting or
misappropriation of assets? * Is the Audit Committee concerned about those
» If so, have the instances been appropriately relationships or transactions with related parties? If

addressed and how have they been addressed? so, the substance of those concerns?

* How does the Audit Committee exercise oversight of
the School Board’s fraud risks and the establishment
of controls to address fraud risks?

KbinG 15
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Audit strategy

March - April 2024

Planning & Risk Assessment

Debrief prior year with management

Kick-off with management

Planning and initial risk assessment

procedures, including:

* Involvement of others

» |dentification and assessment of
risks of misstatements and
planned audit response for
certain processes

Obtain and update an understanding

of the School Board and its

environment

Inquire of the Audit Committee,

management and others within the

School Board about risks of material

misstatement

Risk assessment

June - July 2024

Risk assessment & Interim work

Evaluate the School Board’s
components of internal control, other

Key milestones and deliverables

than the control activities component

Perform process walkthroughs for
certain business processes
Identify process risk points for
certain business processes>
Complete interim data extraction
and processing activities

Complete initial risk assessment
Communicate audit plan

Identify IT applications and
environments

Evaluate D&l of controls for certain
business processes (control activity
component)

Evaluate D&l of general IT controls
Provide update on audit progress

Audit quality

August-Sept 2024

Interim work

Perform process walkthroughs for
remaining business processes
Identify process risk points for
remaining business processes
Evaluate D&l of controls for
remaining business processes
(control activity component)
Perform interim substantive audit
procedures

Perform site visits

Provide update on audit progress

Independence Appendices

Octoher - Nov 2024

Final Fieldwork & Reporting

Complete year-end data extraction
and processing activities

Perform remaining substantive audit
procedures

Evaluate results of audit procedures,
including control deficiencies and
audit misstatements identified
Review financial statement
disclosures

Present audit results to the Audit
Committee and perform required
communications

Issue audit report on financial
statements

Closing meeting with management
Filing date: Issue audit reports on
financial statements

Page 24 of 43
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Highlights Audit strategy Risk assessment Key milestones and deliverables Independence Appendices
] ] ] ?
How clo we deliver audit quality:

Quality essentially means doing the right thing and remains our highest

priority. Our Global Quality Framework outlines how we deliver quality L ot
and how every partner and staff member contributes to its delivery. an%ul};hees

The drivers outlined in the framework are the ten components of the KPMG System of
Quality Management (SoQM). Aligned with ISQM 1/CSQM 1, our SoQM components also
meet the requirements of the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants Monitor -
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) and the relevant rules of professional

conduct / code of ethics applicable to the practice of public accounting in Canada, ~ Nurture Perform quality . Ermbiece digital
which apply to professional services firms that perform audits of financial statements. Our dwe{;srﬁg'"ed " engagements ' technology

Transparency Report includes our firm’s Statement on the Effectiveness of our SoQM.

D KPMG Canada Transparency Report " Remediate -~
We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when:
Apply
audits are executed consistently, in line with the requirements and intent of applicable expertise and

knowledge

professional standards within a strong system of quality management; and

all of our related activities are undertaken in an environment of the utmost level of
objectivity, independence, ethics and integrity.

Doing the right thing. Always.
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Appendices

The objective of these measures is to provide more in-depth information about factors that influence audit quality within an audit process. Below are the AQls that we have agreed

with management are relevant for the audit. We would like to obtain agreement of the Audit Committee that these are the relevant AQls.

We will communicate the status of the below AQls upon completion of our audit.

Team composition Technologyinthe audit

Experience of the team Implementation of Technology in the Audit

* Role — number of years experience in  Increase in use of technology in the audit
the industry, number of years on this year over year
engagement

Timing of preparedh . .
ML L Qualityreviews
client (PBC) items
Timeliness of PBC items Results of internal and external reviews
* Number of timely and overdue items +  Number and nature of findings specific to
received by the audit team. the audit engagement
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In determining the fees for our services, we have considered the nature, extent and timing of our planned audit procedures. At least once annually, we will confirm our independence
with respect to our role as external auditors of the School Board. The services detailed below are not prohibited and no threats to our independence have been any identified.

Description of service Current period (budget) Prior period (actual)
Audit of the annual financial statements of the School Board? $48,000 $47,000
$8,600 $ 8,450

Agreed Upon Procedures for the 7-month period ended March 31, 20242

1In response to the implementation of PS 3280 in fiscal 2023, there may continue to be additional fees based on time incurred related to this new accounting standard depending on the level
of activity during the year. Similarly, the new Canadian auditing standard that was in effect in fiscal 2023, CAS 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement, will

continue to require additional effort in subsequent years after adoption.
2 There will be additional fees based on time incurred as the Ministry’s 7-month procedures include incremental effort related to the adoption of new accounting standards, consistent with the

previous year.
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KPMG LLP

863 Princess Street, Suite 400
Kingston ON K7L 5N4
Canada

Telephone 613-549-1550

Fax 613-549-6349

Craig Young Bob Godkin

Superintendent of Business Audit Committee Chair
Limestone District School Board Limestone District School Board
220 Portsmouth Avenue 220 Portsmouth Avenue
Kingston, ON K7M 0G2 Kingston, ON K7M 0G2

April 24, 2024

The purpose of this letter is to outline the terms of our engagement to audit the consolidated
annual financial statements (“financial statements”) of Limestone District School Board (“the
Entity”), commencing for the year ending August 31, 2024 and in the future.
This letter supersedes our previous letter to the Entity dated Apnil 14, 2023.

The terms of the engagement outlined in this letter will continue in effect from period to period,
unless amended or terminated in wrifing. The attached Assurance Terms and Conditions and
any exhibits, attachments and appendices hereto and subsequent amendments form an integral
part of the terms of this engagement and are incorporated herein by reference (collectively the
“Engagement Letter™).

Financial Reporting Framework for the Financial Statements

The financial statements will be prepared and presented in accordance with the basis of
accounting described in note 1 on the consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to
as the “financial reporting framework™).

The financial statements will include an adequate description of the financial reporting
framework.

Management's Responsibilities
Management responsibilities are described in Appendix A — Management’s Responsibilities.

An audit of the annual financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with
governance of their responsibilities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities
Qur responsibilities are described in Appendix B — Auditor's Responsibifities.
If management does not fulfill the responsibilities above, we cannot complete our audit.

aric Imited Sabilty parmership and member firm of the KPRG giobal oanization of Independent
d=matonal Limited, a private Engish company mited by guarniee.

= 10 KPMG LLF

Key milestones and deliverables

Audit quality Independence

Appendices

kPMmG

Additional Responsibilities regarding “Other Information™

“Other information” is defined in professional standards to be the financial or non-financial
information (other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon) included in the
“annual report”.  An “annual report” is defined in professional standards to comprise a
document or combination of documents. Professional standards also indicate that:

« an annual report is prepared typically on an annual basis in accordance with law, regulation
or custom (i.e., is reaccurmng)

« an annual report contains or accompanies the financial statements and the auditors’ report
thereon

« an annual report’s purpose is to provide owners (or similar stakeholders) with information on
the Entity's:
o operations; and/or
o financial results and financial position as set out in the financial statements.

Based on discussions with management, there are no documents, or combination of
documents, expected to meet the definition of an "annual report” under professional standards.

Auditor's Deliverables

Unless otherwise specified, our report will be in writing and the expected content of our report
are provided in Appendix C — Expected Form of Report. However, there may be circumstances
in which a report may differ from its expected form and content.

In addition, if we become aware of information that relates to the information we reported on
after we have issued our report, but which was not known to us at the date of our report, and
which is of such a nature and from such a source that we would have investigated that
information had it come to our attention during the course of our engagement, we will, as soon
as practicable: (1) communicate such an occumrence to those charged with governance; and
(2) undertake an investigation to determine whether the information is reliable and whether the
facts existed at the date of our report. Further, management agrees that in conducting that
investigation, we will have the full cooperation of the Entity’s personnel. If the subsequently
discovered information is found to be of such a nature that: (a) our report would have been
affected if the information had been known as of the date of our report; and (b) we believe that
the report may have been distnibuted to someone who would attach importance to the
information, appropriate steps will be taken by KPMG, and appropriate steps will also be taken
by the Entity, to advise of the newly discovered facts and the impact to the information we
reported on.

Non-Audit Service — Certain Assistance Relating to Word Processing and Preparation of
Financial Statements

Word Processing

We will assist management by providing word processing for the Entity’s financial statements
and related notes.
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kPG

Assistance in Preparing Financial Statements

We will assist management in preparing the financial statements and related notes in
accordance with the financial reporting framework.

We will use information from the trial balance and/or other source documents provided by
management to assist management in preparing the financial statements and related notes. We
may also provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the Entity in
performing its responsibilities.

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the Entity.

The Entity agrees to:

« Assume all management responsibilities, including determining the accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements and notes.

« Assign a suitable employee with appropnate skills, knowledge and/or experience to oversee
the financial statement preparation assistance and evaluate the adequacy and results of the
services.

» Accept responsibility for the results of the financial statement preparation assistance.

Income Tax Compliance and Advisory Services

Our deliverables regarding income tax compliance and advisory services are described in
Appendix D — Income Tax Gompliance and Advisory Senvices.

Use of KPMG Clara for clients

The terms and conditions for use of KPMG Clara for clients apply to the use of the collaboration
tool and can be found here.

Fees

Appendix E — Fees for Professional Services to this letter lists our fees for professional services
to be performed under this Engagement Letter.

g

kPmG

We are available to provide a wide range of services beyond those outlined above. Additional
services are subject to separate terms and arrangements.

We are proud to provide you with the services outlined above and we appreciate your
confidence in our work. We shall be pleased fo discuss this letter with you at any time. If the
arrangements and terms are acceptable, please sign the duplicate of this letter in the space
provided and retum it to us.

Yours very truly,
Ko 48
/

Lori Huber, CPA, CA, Licensed Public Accountant

Fartner, responsible for the engagement and its performance, and for the report that is issued
on behalf of KPMG LLP, and who, where required, has the appropriate authonty from a
professional, legal or regulatory body

613-541-7320

Enclosure

ek

The terms of the engagement set out are as agreed:

Craig Young, Superintendent of Business Bob Godkin, Audit Committee Chair
(having the appropnate authority to (having the appropriate authority to engage
engage the Entity) the Entity)

Date (DD/MMIYYYY) Date (DDIMMIYYYY)
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Appendix A — Management’s Responsibilities
Management acknowledges and understands that they are responsible for:

(a) the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in accordance
with the financial reporting framework referred to above

(b) providing us with all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements (“relevant information”) such as financial records,
documentation and other matters, including:

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and
transactions with related parties

— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared, of board of trustees, and committees of the
board of trustees that may affect the financial statements. All significant actions are to
be included in such summaries.

(c) providing us with unrestricted access to such relevant information.

(d) providing us with complete responses to all enquiries made by us during the
engagement.

(e) providing us with additional information that we may request from management for the
purpose of the engagement

(f) providing us with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain evidence

(g) such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or
error. Management also acknowledges and understands that they are responsible for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

(h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial
statements_

(1) providing us with written representations required to be obtained under professional
standards and written representations that we determine are necessary. Management
also acknowledges and understands that, as required by professional standards, we
may disclaim an audit opinion when management does not provide certain written
representations required.

kPG

Appendix B — Auditor’'s Responsibilities
Auditor’s responsibilities regarding the audit of the financial statements
Ouwr function as auditors of the Entity is:

— to express an opinion on whether the Entity’s annual financial statements, prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged with governance, are, in all material
respects, in accordance with the financial reporting framework referred to above

— to report on the annual financial statements

We will conduct the audit of the Entity’s annual financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and relevant ethical requirements, including
those pertaining to independence (hereinafter referred to as applicable “professional
standards”).

We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
financial statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. Accordingly, we will, among other things:

- identify and assess nisks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, based on
an understanding of the Entity and its environment, including the Enfity's internal control. In
making those risk assessments, we consider intemal control relevant to the Entity's
preparation of the annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control

- obtain sufficient appropniate audit evidence about whether material misstatements exist,
through designing and implementing appropriate responses to the assessed risks

- form an opinion on the Entity’s annual financial statements based on conclusions drawn from
the audit evidence obtained

— communicate matters required by professional standards, to the extent that such matters
come to our attention, to the appropriate level of management, those charged with
governance and/or the board of trustees. The form (oral or in wriing) and the timing will
depend on the importance of the matter and the requirements under professional standards.
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Appendix C— Expected Form of Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the Trustees of The Limestone Distnct School Board
Cpinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Limestone District School Board
(the Entity), which comprise:
+ the consolidated statement of financial position as at August 31, 2024
+ the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended
+ the consolidated statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended
+ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

+ and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies
(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Entity as at end of August 31, 2024, and its consolidated
results of operations, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
the basis of accounting as descnbed in note 1 to the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of our auditor’s report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter — Financial Reporting Framework

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes the applicable financial
reporting framework and the purpose of the financial statements.

As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.
QOur opinion is not moedified in respect of this matter.

Key milestones and deliverables

Audit quality Independence

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the basis of accounting as described in note 1 to the financial statements, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability
to continue as a going concemn, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Appendices
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Risk assessment

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue
as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the group entity to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Kingston, Canada
Date

Key milestones and deliverables

Audit quality Independence
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Appendix D - Income Tax Compliance and Advisory Services

This letter details the general tax advisory services to be provided to the Limestone District
School Board (“the Entity”) for the year ending August 31, 2024 and in the future. If there are tax
services to be delivered outside the scope of those described in this letter, we will require a
separate engagement letter for those services.

General tax advisory services

Our advice generally falls under one of the following situations:

1

2)

On an ongoing basis, we will provide advisory services of a general nature relating to
various income, capital, payroll and indirect tax matters as they arise. This type of service
generally arises on a periodic basis as a result of preliminary inquiries made by you. In
rendering these services, it is important to recognize that the advice provided is dependent
on the detail of the information provided and the environment in which it is rendered. When
professional judgment suggests written confimiation of the facts and advice is necessary,
we will draft the appropriate correspondence to ensure the appropnate standard of care is
met by all parties.

Periodically, you will seek detailed advice from us in connection with a specific transaction
or undertaking you are contemplating. In such a situation, our advice will be based on the
infermation provided to us. It is the responsibility of the Entity to ensure we are provided
with all the information necessary in order for us to render the advice sought. Our tax
advice will most likely be communicated to you, or your designate, in writing.

Qur tax advisory services, both written and oral, will be based on the facts and assumptions
submitted to us. We will not independently verify this information. Inaccuracy or incompleteness
of the information could have a material effect on our conclusions.

To be of greatest assistance to the Entity, we should be advised in advance of any proposed

transactions. If such matters exceed the scope of this engagement letter, we will issue additional

engagement letters to confirm the particular scope and terms.

Appendices
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Appendix E — Fees for Professional Services

Regarding our audit of the annual financial statements as described in this letter, the Entity and
KPMG agree to an estimated fees of $48,000 for these services as outlined in our proposal
dated October 31, 2021.

In response to the new accounting standards in fiscal 2023 related to Asset Retirement
Obligations, there may continue to be additional fees based on the incremental time incurred
related to the audit work required in response to the adoption of this standard, PS 3280.

QOur fees will be billed as the work progresses for this service.

KPMG will notify management should there be any risk that the engagement cannot be
completed within the criginal fee quoted due to change in scope or unforeseen circumstances.

The information technology infrastructure costs and administrative support charge as described
in the Assurance Terms and Cenditions (*Fee and Other Arrangements”) shall be 7% of total
fees.

Interest on overdue invoices as described in the Assurance Terms and Conditions (“Fee and
Other Arangements”) shall be (1)% per month, calculated and compounded menthly (effective
annual rate of (12.683)%).

Assumptions

Our proposed professional fees assume that we will receive full participation from your staff, and
that all necessary information will be available and appropriate for us to deliver our professional
services as agreed upon with management.

KPMG will notify management should there be any risk that the engagement cannot be
completed within the original fee quoted due to change in scope or unforeseen circumstances.

Our proposed professional fees are based on the assumption that management and employees
are fully available throughout the audit period, that all necessary information is provided at the
beginning of the first day of the audit work as agreed upon with management, and that this
information is appropriate for us to perform owr audit under Canadian Auditing Standards.
Furthermore, these proposed professional fees assume the following:

— The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported on the financial statements and
other schedules to be audited will not change significantly from the prior year;

- There are no refroactive changes required to the prior year financial statements;

- We are not required to provide accounting assistance, preparation of comecting accounting
entries or accounting advisory services;

- Your financial records are in good order, are appropnately adjusted at the start of the audit,
and are prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting framework;

— Your intemal controls around financial reporting operated effectively throughout the fiscal
year under audit;

— There are no changes to Accounting Standards, or Canadian Auditing Standards (CAS)
requirements that significantly impact the financial statements; and

— There are no impairment issues nor adjustment on any investments or capital assets.

If these assumptions are not met, our professional fees will be subject to revision, and will be
discussed with management during the audit process.

hclG,

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ASSURANCE ENGAGEMENTS
(PRIVATE COMPANY CLIENTS)

These Terms and Conditions are an integral part of the accompanying
engagement |etter or proposal from KPMG that identifies the engagement
to which they relate (and collectively form the “Engagement Letter”). The
Engagement Letter supersedes all written or oral representations on this
matter. The term “Entity” used herein has the meaning set out in the
accompanying engagement letter or proposal. The term “Management™
used herein means the management of Entity.

1. Documexts anp LicensEs.

a. Al working papers, fles and other internal materials created or
produced by KPMG in refation to this engagement and all copyright and
inteflectual property rights therein are the property of KPMG.

b.  Only in connection with the services herein Entity hereby grants to
KPMG a limited, Jusit paid up and

d.  Fees for any other senvices will be billed separately from the services
described in this Engagement Letter and may be subject 1o written terms
and conditions supplemental to those in the Engagement Letter

e. Canadian Public Accountability Board ("CPAB") participation fees,
when applicable, are charged to Enfity based on the annual fees levied by
CPAB.

4. Use or Memeer Firmz anp Tump Pamty Serwice ProwiDErs;
SToRAGE AND UsE OF INFORMATION.

a KPMG is a member firm of the KPMG Intemational Cmpe(atme

(KPMG sonal”). Entity ges that in with the

provision of services hereunder, KPMG may use the services of KPMG

Intemational member firms, s well as other third party service providers or

and KPMG shall be entfied to share with them all

royalty-free icense, without right ufsubhcense w use all logos,
and service marks of Entity solely for presentations or reports to Entity or for
internal KPMG presentations and intranet sites. Further, Entity agrees that
KPMG may list Entity as a customer in KPMG's internal and external
marketing materials. including KPMG websites and social media. indicating
the general services rendered (e.g., “Clent is an Audit, Advisory, andior Tax
chient of KPMG LLP").

2. EnTiTv's REZFONZIBILITIER.

a. Entity agrees that all management responsibdities will be

and related to the engagement, including
Entity's confidential information and personal information (Tinformation”).
KPMG may also: (i) directly. or using such aforementioned KPMG
Intemational member firms, third party service providers or subcontractors,
perform data analytics in respect of the information; and (i) retain and
disclose to KPMG International member firms the information to share best
practices or for knowledge sharng purposes. In all such cases, such
information may be used, retained, processed, or stored outside of Canada
by such KPMG Intemational member firms, other third party service

and all management decisions will be made by Entity. and not by KPMG.
b.  Entity’s provision of documents and information to KPMG on a timely
basis is an important factor in our d:llny to Bsue any reports under this
Engagement Letter. KPMG is not for any arising
from Entity's failure to deliver documents and information as required.

c. Tothe extent that KPMG personnel are on Entity's premises, Entity will
take all reasonable precautions for their

d. Entity understands and acknowledges Ihat KPMG's inds d

providers or . and may be subject to disclosure in accordance
with the laws L in the j son in which the i ion is used,
retained, processed or stored, which laws may not provide the same level
of protection for such infermation as will Canadian laws. KPMG represents.
that such KPMG International member firms, other third party service
providers or subcontractors have agreed or shall agree to conditions of
confidentiality with respect to Entity’s confidential information, and that
KPMG = responsible to ensure their compliance with those conditions. Any

may be impaired if any KPMG partner. employee or contractor accepts any

offer of employment from Enfity.

e. Except as required by applicable law or regulation, Entity shall keep

cmﬁden‘nal the terrrﬁ of this Engagerrem Lefter, and such confidential
be distributed, or mad: ilable to any other

person without KPMG's express written permission.

f.  Management agrees to promptly provide us with a copy of any

comment letter or request for information issued by any securities or other

regulatory authority in respect of information on which KFMG reported,

including without mitation any continuous dischosure fiings.

3. Fee anp OTHER ARRANGEMENTS.

a.  KPMG's estimated fee is based in part on the quality of Entity’s records,
the agreed-upon level of preparation and assistance from Enfity's

SEMICEs [ by KPMG member ﬁrrns ot mhermldparty
senice providers or shall be p

the terms of this Engagement Lefter, but KPMG rEMains solehf respcmslble
to Entity for the delivery of the senvices hereunder. Entity agrees that any
claims that may arse out of the engagement will be brought sclely against
KPMG, the contracting party, and not against any other KPMG International
member firms or other third party service prowiders or subcontractors
refermed to above.

b. Cerain information {including information relating to time, billing and
conflicts) collected by KPMG during the course of the engagement may be
used, retained, processed and stored outside of Canada by KPMG, KPMG
Intemational member firms or third party

providing support services to KPMG for adnlmslntue Edlnubglcal and
clericallorganizational purposes including in respect of client engagement
ofies. and to

personnel, and adherence by Entity to the agreed-up ble. KPMG's
estimated fee also assumes that Entity's financial statements andfor other
financial informaticn, as applicable, are prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework or the relevant criteria, as applicable,
and that there are no significant changes to the relevant financial reporting
framework or the relevant criteria, as applicable; no significant new or
changed accounting policies; no significant changes to internal control; and
no other significant issues._

b.  Additional ime may be incurred for such matters as significant issues,
significant umesual andior complex transactions, informing management
about new professional standards, and any related accounting advice.
Where these matters arise and require research, consultation and work
beyond that ncluded in the estimated fee, Entity and KPMG agree to revise
the estimated fee. Our professional fees are also subject to an addtional
charge to cover information technology infrastructure costs and
administrative support of our client service Di

comply with q)plx'.d:le Iaw regulation or professional standards (including
for quality performance reviews). Such information may be subject to
disclosure in accordance with the laws applicable in Ihejurisdiction in which
the information is used. retained, processed or stored, which laws may not
provide the same level of protection for such information as will Canadian
laws. KPMG may also share information with its legal advisers and insurers
for the purposes of obtaining advice.

c. Entity acknowledges that KPMG aggregates anonymous information
from sources including the Entity for various purposes, including to monitor
quality of senvice, and Entity consents to such use. KPMG may also use
Entity's information to offer services that may be of interest to Entity.

5. PersowaL lwFormation ConzenTs ano Nomices.

KPMG may be reguired to collect. use and disclose personal information
about individuals during the course of the engagement. Any collection. use

for
items such as trawel, accommodation and meals will be charged based on
KPMG's actual dsbursements.
c. KPMG's invoices are due and payable upon receipt. In order to avoid
the possible implication that unpaid fees might be viewed as creating a
threat to KPMG's independence, it is important that KPMG's bills be paid
promptly when rendered. If a situation arises in which # may appear that
KPMG's independence is threatened because of significant unpaid bills,
KPMG may be prohibited from signing any applicable report andior consent.

or of personal information is subject to KPMG's Privacy Policy
available at wwwkpmgeca Entity represents and warants that (i) it will
obtain any consents required to allow KPMG to collect, use and disclose
personal information in the course of the engagement, and (i) it has
provided notice to those individuals whose personal information may be
collected, used and disclosed by KPMG hereunder of the potential
processing of such personal information cutside of Canada (as described in
Section 4 above). KPMG s Pri\rat'.yI Officer noted in KPMG's privacy paolicy
is able to answer any ions about the ion of personal
information rEqulEd for KPMG tu deliver services hereunder.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ASSURANCE ENGAGEMENTS
(PRIVATE COMPANY CLIENTS)

Key milestones and deliverables

6.  TwiRo ParTy DEMANDE FOR DOCUMENTATION AND INFORMATION | LEGAL
anp ReauLatony Processss.
a  Entty on its own behalf hereby acknowledges and agrees 1o cause its
subsidiaries and affliates to acknowledge that KPMG or a foreign
component auditor which has been engaged i connection with an
assurance engagement (*component auditor™) may from time to time receive
demands from a third party {(each, a “third party demand™), including without
limitation (i) from CPAB or from professional. securities or other regulatory.
taxation. judicial or governmental authorities (both in Canada and abroad),
to provide them with information and copies of documents in KFMG's or the
component auditor's files including (without limitation) working papers and
other work-product relating to the afiairs of Enmy its subsidiaries and
or

demands, suits, proceedings, kabiites, costs, expenses, or losses
(collectively, “Claims”) in any way arising out of or relating to the services
performed hereunder for an aggregate amount in excess of the lesser of
one miion dollars (§1,000,000) or two times the fees paid by Entity to
KPMG under the engagement; and (i} on a muiti-phase engagement,
KPMG's liabdity shall be based on the amount actually paid to KPMG for the
particular phase that gives rise to the liability.

b.  Subject to Section 14, in the event of a Claim by any third party against
KPMG that arises out of or relates to the services performed hereunder,
Entity will indemnify and hold harmless KFMG fom all such Claims,
including, without limitation, reasonable legal fees. except to the extent
finally determined to have resulted from the intentional, deliberate or
KPMG.

afflistes, and (i) summens for
related fo the services provided haeunder which informationand
or

of
c Subject to Section 14: (i) in no event shall KPMG be liable for
special, indirect, incidentsl, punitive or sxemplary damages,

may contain of Entity, its
affiliates. Except where prohibited by law, KPMG or its component auditor,
as applicable, will advise Entity or its affiliate or subsidiary of the third party
demand. Entity acknowledges, and agrees o cause its subsidiaries and
afﬁlmes to acknowledge, that KPMG or its component auditor, as

will produce d and provide i in response to
the third party demand, without further authority from Entity, its subsidianes
or affiliates.
b.  KPMG will use reasonable efforts to withhold from production any
documentation or informaticn over which Entity asserts pravilege. Entity
must identify any such documentation or information at the time of its
provision to KF’MG by markmg n as pmﬂleged Notwithstanding the
foregoing. where is required by law.
KPMG will disclose such privieged ducumenls. | and only if the authority
requires such access to such privileged documents pursuant to the laws of
a prisdiction in which express consent of Enfity is required for such
disclosure, then Entity hereby provides its consent.
c. Entty agrees to reimburse KPMG for #ts professional time and any
disbursements, including reasonable legal fees and taxes, in responding to
third party demands.
d Enfty waives and releases KPMG from any and all claims that it may
have against KPMG as 3 resnitef any disclosure or production by KPMG of

ori herein.
€. Entty agrees to nntliy KPMG promptly of any request received by
Entity from any third party with respect to the services hereunder, KPMG's
confidential information, KPMG's advice or report or any related document.
7. CowsecTing 7o THE Entrre's IT Nerwork: Euai ano Owume Fie

SHarve anD SToRaoE TooLs.

a  Entity authorizes KPMG personnel to connect their computers to
Entity's IT Metwerk and the Intemet wia the Metwork while at the Entity's
premises for the purpose of conducting nommal business actvities.
b.  Enfity recognizes and accepts the risks associated with communicating
electronically. and using online file sharing. storage. collaberation and other
simiar online tools to transmit information to or sharing information with
KPMG, inchuding (but without limitation) the lack of security, unreliabdity of
delivery and possible loss of confidentiality and prvilege. Entity assumes all
responsibility or liability in respect of the risk associated with the use of the
foregoing, and agrees that KPMG is not responsible for any issues that
might arse (including loss of data) as a resuit of Entity using the foregoing
to transmit information 1o or otherwise share nformation with KPMG and. in
the case of online tools other than email, KFMG's access to and use of the
same in connection with obtaining Entity i and

or losses (including, without limitation, lost profits
cOsts| any Claim arising out of the engagement, Entity
agrees that KPMG's liability will be several and not joint and several: and
{iii} Entity may only claim payment fom KPMG of KPMG's proportionate
share of the total liability based on degree of fault.
d. For purposes of this Section 0. the term KPMG shall include its
subsidiaries, its associated and affiliated entities and their respective cument
and former pariners, directors, offcers, employees, agents and
representatives. The provisions of this Section 2 shall apply regardless of
the foom of Claim, whether in contract. statute. tort (including. without
limitation, negligence) or ctherwise.
10. Cowzent 1o THE Use oF THE KPMG Naue or KPMG RerorT.
Except as otherwise specifically agreed in this Engagement Letter, KPMG
does not consent to:
i theuse of ourname or cur report in connection with information, cther
than what we have reported on as part of this Engagement Letter or our
report thereon, that contains, incorporates by reference, or otherwise
ACCOMPANiEs our Teport of our name:
i the use of our report in another language. or the use of cur report in
connection with information that we reported on that has been translated
into another language, or the use of our name in connection with information
that we reported on that has been franslated inte another language:
i the use of our report in connection with an offering document or other
securities filing, inchuding continuous disclosure flings; or
. the use of our name or our report in connection with the intenm
financial statements {or other interim financial information) or any statement
by the Entity regarding the services that we provided on the interim financial
staternents or other interim financial information.
Any communication, report, statement or conclusion on the mterm financial
statements may not be inchuded in, or otherwise referred to in any public
document or public oral statements except when the interim review
cundusiwl contains a modified conclusion, in which case our interim review
report wi the interim financial
H he Enan wishes to obiain KPMG's consent regarding the matters above
or other matters not otherwise specifically coversd by this Engagement
Letter, we will be required to perform procedures as required by applicable
professional standards, and such procedures would be a separate
engagement and subject to separate engagement terms.
11, AvterMaTive DigPUTE REZCLUTION.

Any dispute or claim betwesn the parbies arising under or relating to this

B, Lwmamon On WarraNTIES.

THIS IS A SERVICES ENGAGEMENT. KPMG WARRANTS THAT IT WILL
PERFORM SERVICES HEREUNDER IN GOOD FAITH WITH QUALIFIED
PERSOMMNEL IN A COMPETENT AND WORKMAMLIKE MANMER IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE INDUSTRY STANDARDS. SUBJECT
TO SECTION 14, KPMG DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES,
REPRESENTATIONS OR CONDITIONS. EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES,
REPRESENTATIONS OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

9. Lmamamion on LiABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION.

a  Subject to Section 14: (i) Entity agrees that KPMG shall not be liable
to Entity for any actions. damages, claims, fines, penalties, complaints,

Letter or the services provided hereunder (the "Dispute”) shall
be submitted to non-binding mediation. If mediation is not successful within
00 days after the issuance by a party of a request for mediation, then the
Dispute shall be refemed to and finally resclved by arbitration under the
Arpitration Rules of the ADR Institute of Canada in force at that time. The
Seat of Arbitration shall be the province where KPMG's principal office
performing this engagement is located. The language of the arbitration shall
be English. The Arbitral Tribunal shall be made up of a single Arbitrator.
The arbitration award shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the parties,
and not subject to appeal.

12. PoTewmaL CONFLICTE OF INTEREST.

a. KPMG is or may be engaged by entiies and individuals who have
patentially conflicting legal and business interests to Entity. Entity agrees
that, without further notice or disclosure to Entity, KPMG may: (i) accept or
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continue such engagements on matters unrelated to KPMG's engagement
for Entity- and (i) provide advice or services to any other person or entity
making a competing bid or proposal to that of Entity whether or not KPMG
is proviging advice or services to Entity in respect of Entity’s competing bid
or proposal.
b In accordance with professional standards, KPMG will not use any
regarding Entity in with its
with other clients, and will establish confidentiality and other safeguards to
manage conflicts, which may include, in KPMG's sole discretion, the use of
separate engagement teams and data access controls
& In noevent shall KPMG be liable to Entity, or shall Entity be entitled to
a retum of fees or or any other
as a result of KPMG accepting or continuing a conflicting engagement in
nce with the terms of this Engagement
d.  Entty agrees that KPMG may, in its sole discretion, disclose the fact
and nature of its engagement for Entity to (i) KFMG Intemnational member
firms to inform conflict searches. and (i) to the extent reasonably required
in order to obtain the consent of another entity or individual in order to permit
KPMG to act for such entity or individual, or for Entity, in connection with the:
or any future
& In the event that circumstances arise that place KPMG into a conflict
of interest as between Entity and a pre-existing client, which in KPMG's sole
opinicn cannot be adequately addressed through the use of confidentiality
and other safeguards. KPMG shall be entitied to immediately terminate the
engagement with Entity, without liability.
f. Other KPMG Intemational member firns are or may be engaged by
entities and indi who have g legal and business
interests to Entity. Enfity agrees that (i) i will not assert that other KPMG
Intemational member frms are preciuded from being engaged by those
other entities or individuals, and (i} those engagements of other KPMG
Intemational member firms do not confiict with KPMG's engagement for
Entity.
13. LossviNe.

Unless expressly stated in this Engagement Letter, KPMG will not undertake
any lobbying activity, as that term is defined in all applicable federal,
provincial and municipal lobbyrst registration statutes and regulations, in
connection with the engagement. In the event that KPMG and Entity agree
that KPMG will undertake lobbying activity in connection with the
engagement. such agreement shall be set out in an amendment to this
Engagement Letter.

14, SeveERABILITY.

The provisions of these Terms and Conditions and the accompanying
propasal or engagement letier shall only apply to the extent that they are
not prohibited by a mandatory provision of appiicable law, regulaton or
professional standards. If any of the provisions of these Terms and
Conditions or the vg proposal or letter are
determined to be invalid, void or ,the remalmng provisicns of
these Terms and Conditions or the 53l or
letter, as the case may be, shall not be afectad, lnpared orinvalidated, and
each such provision shall remain valid and in effact and be enforceable and
binding on the pariies to the fullest extent permitted by law.

15. Goverums Law.

This Engagement Letter shall be subjectw and govemned by the laws of the
province where KPMG's principal office performing this engagement is
located (without regard to such province’s nules on conflicts of law).

16, LLP S7atus.

KPMG is a regi: limited liabiity ip (LLP7) i under
the laws of the Province of Ontario and. where applicable, has been
registered extra-provincially under provincial LLP legislation

17. INDEPEMDENT LEGAL ADVICE.

Entity agrees that it been advised to retain independent legal advice at its
own expense prior to signing this Engagement Letter (including without
limitation with respect to Entity's rights in connection with potential future
conflicts) and agrees that any failure on its part to retain such independent

legal counsel shall not affect (and it shall not assert that the same affects)
the validity of the provisions of this Engagement Lefter.

18. SuRvVIVAL.

Al sections hereof cther than Section T{a) shall survive the expiration or
termination of the engagement.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ADVISORY AND TAX SERVICES

1. Terms awp CoNDmons.

a. These Terms and Conditions are an integral part of the accompanying
Proposal or Engagement Letter from KPMG that identifies the engagement
to which they relate.

b. In the event of conflict between the Proposal or Letter

circumstances KPMG's written advice or final written report shall take
precedence. No reliance should be placed by Client on any oral, draft or
interim advice, reports or presentations. Where Client wishes to rely on oral
advice or oral presentation, Client shall inform KPMG and KPMG will
Euwde of the advics

and these Temms and Conditions, these Terms and Condiions shall prevail
unless specific reference to a provision of the Terms and Canditions being

to the ion of the KPMG wil not
update its advice, recommendations or work product for changes or
delﬁcanuﬂ to the law and regulations, or to the judicial and administrative:

varied is made in the Proposal or Letter. Other thersof, or for events or i unless

words in these Terms and Conditions shall have the meanings given tothem e _ 08 S0t 2 o TR AR ahE, sm,, changes o

in the Proposal or Engagement Letter. . events or

2. Semvices. 3. Working Parers AND Use OF RerorTs; Use oF NJ\IE &MD Loao

KPMG wil use reasonable efforts o complet the performance of the 5 kPG retains o rights = all ies, knowh

servioss within any agreed-upon fme-frame. It is ‘and agreed “and software by KPMG edher prior 1o or durng the

mat KFMG's services may ncluds advice and but all KPMG siso retains all ights (including, without Emitason,

decisions i connection with the implementation of such advice and cop BT Ol reoote wetien advics and ofver working papers. and
shall be the of, and made by, Chent KPMG o) de'ueluped by KPMG during the engagement Unless

will ot perform functions or make gecisions for Letter, all reports and written advics are

Client. Nothing in these Terms and Conditions or Engagement Letter (or
Proposal) shall be construed as prechuding or limiting in any way the right of
KPMG to provide services of any kind or nature to any person

confidential and meﬂded solely for Client's internal use {or the use of
Clienf's management, as applicable) to assist with this specific matter or

or entity as KPMG in its sole discretion deems appropriate.
3. CuenT REZFONSIBILITIES.
a.  Chent agrees to cooperate with KPMG in the performance of the
services under the Engagement Letter and shall provide or amange to
provide KPMG with timely access to and use of the personnel, facilities,
data and for KPMG to perform the
services under the Engagement Letter. To the extent that KPMG personnel
are on Client premises, Client will take all reasonable precautions for the
safety DFKF'MG parners and employees at Client premises. Clhient shall be
for the ployees and agents and for the
accuracy and of a\l daiz and ion provided to KFMG
for purposes of the performance by KPMG of its services hereunder. The:
Proposal or Engagement Letier may set forth additional responsibilites of
Clientin ion with the Client that Client's
failure to perform these obligations could adversely impact KPMG's ability
to perform its services.
b. Chent agrees that Client, and not KPMG, shall perform the following
functions: (i) make all management decisions and periorm all management
functions; (i) designate an indvidual who possesses suitable skil,
knowledge and experience, preferably within senior management, to
oversee the performance of the services under the Engagement Letter, and
to evaluate the adequacy and results of such services; [
responsibility for the results of such services; and (iv) establish and maintain
intemal controls ower the processes with which such services are
concemed, including, without Emitation, menitoring ongoing activities.
c. Chent acknowledges and agrees that KPMG will. in performing the
services, base its conclusions on the facts and assumptions that Chent
furnishes and that KPMG may use data, material, and other information
furnished by or at the request or direction of Client without any independent
investigation or verffication and that KPMG shall be entitied to rely upon the.
accuracy and completeness of such data, material and other mrnrma(m
Inaccuracy or incompleteness of such data, material and other i

and, where ies. and are

not for general use, circulation or p\l:llcanun Such reports and written
advice shall not be edited. referred to. circulated. reproduced. distributed,
published, made available, used for any other purpose or refied upon by any
other person without KPMG's express written pemmission and on such terms
and conditions as KPMG may require in its sole discretion. If such
permission is given, Client shall nct publish any exiract or excerpt of
KPMG's written advice or report or refer to KPMG without providing the
entire advice or report at the same fime. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Client may disclose in whole any report or written advice given to Client by
KPMG hereunder solely to Client's legal and professional advisors for the
purposes of Client seeking advice in respect of the transaction or matter to
which the engagement relates, provided that when doing so Client informs.
such advisors that: (i) disclosure by them (except as permitted herein) is not

permitted without KPMG's prior written consent; and (i) KPMG accepts no
re'spunsibihty or liabiity to such advisors in connection with such reports or
written advice. Subject to the restrictions of Section &, KPMG is entitled to
use or develop the knowledge, experience and skills of general application
gained through performing the engagement.
b Chent shall not refer to KPMG or use KPMG's name or bogo in any
manner or medium without the prior written permission of KPMG in each
instance, which permission may be unreasonably withheld by KPMG.
©.  The contents of this Section 5 may be reproduced in any report or
written advice of KPMG, in whole orin part, at KPMG's sole discretion. Any
failure of KPMG to include any sunh language shall not derogate from the

igations set out in this Section

6. CoNFIDENTIALITY.
a3 Except as described in Section 5 above, Client will treat in confidence
any information provided by KPMG to Client, including but not limited to
KPMG know-how, k led, or software, and
will not use or disclose any such confidential mformation of KPMG to others.
b, Exceptas expressly set forth herein, KPMG will treat as confidential al

furnished to KPMG could have a material effect on KPMG's conclusions.

d. Chient acknowledges that information made avaiable by it, or by others
on Client's behalf, or otherwise known to partners or staff of KPMG who are
not engaged in the provision ofthe services hereunder shall not be deemed
to have been made avadable to the individuals within KFMG who are
engaged in the provision of the senvices hereunder. Chent undertakes that,
if anything occurs after information is provided by Client to KPMG to render
KwPﬂ information untrue, unfair or misleading. Client shall promptly notify

4. ReroRTiNG.

A Alloral and written communications by KFMG to Client with respect to
e engagement. including. without limitation, drafts and those
communications occurring prior to the execution of the Engagement Letter
will be subject to the terms and conditions of the Engagement Letter and
these Terms and Conditions. During the parformance of the senvices, KPMG
may supply oral. draft or interim advice, reports or presentations but in such
Temms Ano ConDImons FOR ADVIZORY AND TAx SEavicEs
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and personal i ion obtained from Chent in the.
course of the engagement.
c.  The restricbons in subsections & (3) and (o) above shall not apply to
any information that (i) is required by law or professional standards
applicable to KPMG to be disclosed: (i) that is in or hereatter enters the
public: domain; (iii} that is or hereafter becomes known to Client or KPMG,
as the case may be, without breach of any confidentiality cbligation; or ()
that is independenty developed by KPMG
d. KPMG shall be entitled to include a description of the services
rendered in the course of the engagement in marketing and research
materials and disclose such information to third parties. provided that all

such information will be rendered d not subject to

with Client.

e KPMG shall be entitied to share all information with all ather member
firms of KPMG perative (KPMG ional). KPMG

G
may also use such information to offer services that may be of interest to
Client. KPMG may retain and may disclose to other KPMG Intemational

member firms, subject to terms of this Secfion B, such information required
for with standards o intemnal policies or
for quality reviews or to share best practices.

f  Professional standards require KPMG personnel performing any audit
or assurance senices for clients to discuss or have avalable to them all
information and matenals that may affect the audt or assurance
engagement Client authorizes, # Client is or becomes an assurance Client,
KPMG personnel performing services under the engagement to make
available to the KPMG assurance engagemeﬂt team and other KFMG
personnel, the findings, from the

duties whether presently in force or imposed in the future. Any such taxes.
or duties shall be assumed and paid by Client without deduction from the
fees and charges hersunder.

b Bils wil be rendered on a regular basis as the engagement
progresses. Our professional fees are also subject to a technology and
support charge to cover information technology infrastructure costs and
administrative support of our client service personnel which are not included
in our client service personnel fee. The technology and support fee covers
costs such a; our client service personnel computer hardware and

are, client senice

ngagement and agrees atKPMG mayuse all such fndings.
MG

g. Except as lequlred by apphcahle law or regulation, Client shall keep
configential the existence and terms of the Froposal or the Engagement
Letter | (as applicable) a\d these Terms and Conditions. Such confidential

published or made available to any other
person without KPMG's express written permission. Furiher, for purposes
of the services described i the Engagement Latr orly. he Client hersby

e services
and ofher client support services. Other direct out-+ nf-pocket costs, such as
travel, will be charged separately based on our actual costs. For certainty,
Client acknowledges that to the extent a subsidiary, afflite or relsted party
of KPMG is engaged by KPMG to assist KPMG in providing the services
hereunder, Client may receive bills from such subsidiary. affiliate or related
party of KPMG for such services. Accounts are due when rendered. Interest
on owerdus 3ccounts is calculsted st the rate noted on the inuoice

grants to KPMG a imited, paid
up and royalty-free license, without right of sublicense, to use all logos,
trademarks and service marks of Client solely for presentations or reparts
to the Client or for internal KPMG presentations and intranet sites.
7. PerzomaL lvroRuaTion CowgenTs axo NoTices.
Any collection, use or disclosure of personal information is subject o
KPMG's Privacy Policy available at www kpmg.ca. KPMG may be required
to collect, use and disclose personal information about individuals during
the course of the engagement. Client represents and warrants that: (i) it will
obtain from individuals all consents required by law o permit KPMG to
collect, use and disclose all personal information reasonably required in the.
course of the engagement, and (i) it has provided netice of KPMG's
potential processing of information outside of Canada (as described in
Section B below) to all individuals whose personal information is disclosed
to KPMG.
8 Use oF Meweer Fmms: axo Thiro ParTy Service ProvineRs
Personal and/or confidential information collected by KPMG during the
course of the engagement may be used, processed and stored outside of
Canada by KPMG, KPMG Intemational member firns providing services
hereunder, KPMG subsidianes. affliates and related parties or third party
service providers to provide professional services and administrative,
analytical and cierical support and to comply with applicable law, regulations.
and professional standards. Client also understands and agrees that KPMG
Clienf's i with i from other sources for the
purpose of improving quality and service, and for use in presemanuﬂsdm

30 days following the date of the invoice.
€. Without limiting its rights or remedies, KPMG shall have the right to halt
or terminate entirely its services untd payment is received on past due
invoices.
d. Inthe event that the engagement is temminated and Client proceeds to
complete the ransaction or financing within 18 months from the termination
date men the full amount of any Completion Fee shall be payable on dlosing
or the of financing. of whether
KF'MG provided further service.
10, Lmmamion ox WaRRANTES.
THIS IS A SERVICES ENGAGEMENT. KPMG WARRANTS THAT IT
WILL PERFORM SERVICES HEREUNDER IN GOOD FAITH WITH
QUALIFIED PERSONNEL IN A COMPETENT AND WORKMANLIKE
MANNER IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE INDUSTRY
STANDARDS. KPMG DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES,
REFRESENTATIONS OR CONDITIONS, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED. INCLUDING. WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES,
REPRESENTATIONS OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.
1. Lmramon os Liasiury.

a.  Chent agrees that KPMG shall not be Eable to Client for any actions,
damages, claims, fines, penalties, complaints, demands, suis,
proceedings. |iabilities. costs, expenses. or losses (collectively, “Claims™) in
any way arising out of or relating to the services performed hereunder for
:v'n aggregate am%.lnt in e)tness of the fees paid by Client to KPMG under

dlients and non-clients. in a form where such
identified so as not to be attributable to Client. KPMG represents to Clent
that each KPMG Intemational member firm; KPMG subsidiary, affiliate and
related party and third party service provider providing services hereunder
has agreed or shall agree to condibions of confidentiality with respect to
Clienf's mformation to the same or simiar extent as KPMG has agreed
pursuant to Section 6. Further, KPMG is responsible to Client for causing
such KPMG subsidiaries, affiliates, related parties and third party service
providers to comply with such conditions of confidentiality, and KPMG shall
be responsible to Client for their failure to comply and failure of each KPMG
Intemational member firm providing services hereunder to comply with its.
obligations of confidentiality owed to KPMG. Any services performed by
KPMG subsidiaries, affliates. related parties and thind pary service
providers shall be performed in accordance with the terms of the
Engagement Letter, including Section 8. but KPMG shall remain respensible
to Client for the performance of such services and services performed by
each KFMG Intemational member firm providing services hereunder. Such
personal andior confidential information may be subject to disclosure in
accordance with the laws applicable in the jurisdiction in which the
information is processed or stored, which laws may not provide the same
level of protection for such information as will Canadian laws. KPMG's
Privacy Officer noted in KPMG's Privacy Policy is able to answer any
individual's questions about the collection of personal information required
fior KPMG to deliver senvices hereunder

9. TaxesBiLwe/Expenses/Fees.

A All fees and other charges do not include any applicable federal,
provincial_ or other goods and services or sales taxes. or any other taxes or
Temms Anp ConDmons FoR ADvizoRy anD Tax Seavices
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KPMG's liabity shall be
based on the amount actually paid to KPMG for the particular phase that
gives rise to the liabdity.

In the event of a Claim by any third party against KPMG that arises out

of or relates to the services performed hereunder, Client will indemnify and
hold harmless KPMG from all such Claims, inciuding. without lmitation,
reasonable legal fees, except to the extent finally oetermined to have
result=d from the i i delib or of KPMG,
. In no event shall KPMG be liable for consegquential, special, indrect,
incidental, punitive or exemplary damages, liabilities, costs, expenses, or
losses (including, without limitation, lost profits and opportunity costs). In
any Claim arising out of the engagement. Client agrees that KPMG's liability
will be several and not joint and several. Clientmay only ciaim payment from
KPMG of KPMG's proportionate share of the iotal liabiliy based on degree
of fault
d. For puposes of this Section 11, the term KPMG shall include its
subsidiaries, its associated and affiliated entities and their respective cument
and former parmers, directors, oficers. employees. agents and
representatives. The provisions of this Section 11 shail apply regardless of
the form of Claim, whether in contract, statute, tort (including, without
limitation, negligence) or otherwise
12. LeocaL PROCEEDINGE.
a.  Chent agrees to notify KPMG promptly of aly request receved by
Client from any court or applicable reguamry authority with respect to the
senices KPMG's KPMG's advice or
report or any related document.
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b. | KPMG is required by law. pursuant to "
subpoena or other legal process to produce documents or peﬁuﬂne! as
witnesses arising out of the engagement and KPMG is not a party to such
proceedings. Client shall reimburse KPMG at standard billing rates for
professional time and expenses, inchuding, without limitation, reascnable
legal fees, expenses and taxes incurmed in responding 1o such compelled
assistance.

c.  [f Client requests that KPMG produce documents or personnel as
witnesses in any proceedings in any way related to the engagement or
services provided by KPMG hereunder and KPMG is not a party to
such proceedings, KPMG may agree to produce documents or
personnel as witnesses on such terms and conditions as KPMG may,
in its sole discretion, determine. Without limiting the generality of the
ﬁlregolng. Client shall reimburse KPMG at standard billing rates for
time and without  limitati
mzsunab\e legal fees, expenses and taxes, incurred in responding to
such Client requests.

d.  Client acknowledges that KPMG may from tlme to time receive
requests or orders from p other reg ¥.
judicial or governmental auﬂlurilies {both in Cznaﬂa and abroad) to
provide them with information and copies of documents in KPMG's
files including. without limitation, working papers and other work-
product relating to Client, which information and documents may
ceontain confidential information of Client. Except where prohibited by
law, KPMG will advise Client of the request or order. Client hereby
acknowledges that KPMG will provide these documents and
without further to, or authority from Client.

t must mark any document over which it asserts privilege as

rivileged™. When such an authority requests access to KPMG's

working papers and other work-product lelatlng to Client's affairs,

KPMG will. on a reasonable refuse access to any

document over which Client has expressly informed KPMG at the time

of delivery that the Client asserts privilege {by the Client marking such
as “privil " as inthe going

shall be evik by the delivery by KPMG to Client of the final
invoice in respect of the services performed hereunder. Should Client not
fulfill its obligations set out herein or in the Engagement Letter and in the
absence of rectification by Client within 10 days. KPMG may. upon writien
notice, terminate its performance and will not be responsible for any loss,
cost or expense resulting therefrom. If at any time during the engagement
it is determined by KPM, in its sole discretion, that there may be an actual
or potential breach by KPMG of applicable professional standards, KPMG
may terminate the engagement, without liability, immediatefy on notie to
Client. The engagement may be terminated by eiher party at any me by
gwmg written notice to the other party not less than 30 Ddendar days before

fhe effectue date of pon eary
Client shall be responsible for the payment to KPMG r KF‘MG < time and
expenses incured up o the date, as well as tme

and expenses to bring the engagement to a close in a prompt and orderly

manner.

13, E-MAIL COMMUMICATION.

Client recognizes and aceepts the risks associated with communicating by
e-mail, including {but without Emitation) the lack of secuity,

unreliability of delivery and possible loss of confidentiality and privilege.

Unless Chent requests in writing that KPMG does not communicate by

Intemet e-mail, Client assumes all responsibility or liabikity in respect of the

risk associated with its use.

16, PoTewmial ConrFLicTs oF INTERELT.

a. For puposes of this Section 18, "KPMG™ means KPMG LLP and
KPMG subsidiaries. afflistes and related parties providing semnvices
hereunder. if applicable. KPMG is engaged by a wide variety of entities and
individuals, some of whom may be creditors, investors, bomowers,
shareholders, competitors, suppliers or customers of Client, or other partes
with conflicting legal and business interests to Client. including. without
limitation, in relation to the audit, tax o advisory services prmnded to Client
by KPMG. KPMG's with such may
result in a confiict with Client’s interests.

As a condition of KPMG's engagement by Client, Client agrees that (i)
without further notice or disclosure, KPMG may accept or continue

the i where di of is
required by law, KPMG will disclose such privileged documents. Fand
only if the authority requires such access to such privileged
documents pursuant to the laws of a jurisdiction in which express
consent of the Client is required for such disclosure, then Client
hereby provides its consent.

Where privileged Client documents are disclosed by KPMG as
contemplated above, KPMG is directed to advise the authority that
Client is permitting disclosure only to the extent required by law and
for the limited purpose of the authority’s exercise of statutory
authority. KPMG is directed to advise the authority that Client does
not intend to waive privilege for any other purpose and that Client
expects its documents to be held by the authority as privileged and
confidential material. For greater certainty. Client and KPMG hereby
agree that this acknowledgement [and, if required, consent} does not
negate or constitute a waiver of privilege for any purpose and Client
expressly relies upon the privilege protections afforded under statute
and otherwise under law.

13. Lwrramon Perico.

Mo proceeding arising under or relating 1o the engagement, may be brought
by either party more than one year after the cause of achon has accrued or

on unredated matters to KPMG's engagement for Chent in
which KPMG may act contrary to Client's interests even if those unrelated
matters are materially and directly adverse to Client: and (ii) without further
notice or disclosure, KPMG may provide advice or services to any other
person or entity making a competing bid or proposal to that of Client whether
or not KPMG is providing advice or services to Client in respect of Client’s
competing bid or proposal.
e In accordance with professional standards, and except as set out
below, KPMG will not use any confidential information regarding Client in
cnnnecmn wm its engagements with other clients, and will establish
d other conflicts, which may include,
i KPM G sole discretion. the use of separate engagement teams and data
access controls. In no event shall KPMG be liable to Client or shall Client
be entitled to a retum of fees and disbursements incurred on behalf of Clent
or any other compensation whatsoever as a result of KPMG accepting or
continuing a conflicting engagement
d.  Chent further agrees that KPMG may, in its sole diseretion, disclose
the fact or general nature of its engagement for Client to (i) KFMG
onal and other KPMG Internaticnal member firms in onder to check
against potential conflicts of interest. and (i) to the extent reasonably
required in order to obtain the consent of ancther entity or individual in order
to permit KPMG to act for such entity or individual, or for Client, in

in any event not more than five years afier ofthe in
the case of an advisary services engagement and not mare than eight years
after completion of the Engagaﬂeﬂ( in the case of a fax services
exceptthata ¥ t may be brought by
KPMG at any time following the date ufﬂle Iast payment due to KPMG
hereunder. For purposes of this Section 13, the term KPMG shall nclude its.
subsidiaries and associated and affiliated entities and their respective
current and former partners, directors, officers, employees, agents and
representatives.
14, TERMINATION.
Unless terminated sooner in accordance with its terms, the engagement
shall terminate on the completion of KPMG's services hereunder. which
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with the or any future engagement.
e Wnere another party has engaged KPMG fo celiver services before
Client has done so, and h that there.

i= 3 conflict, which i KFWG's sole opinion cannot be adequately managed
through the use of confidentiality and other safeguards, KPMG shall be
entitied to terminate the engagement for Client, without liability, immediately
upen notice.

f.  Other KPMG 2 member fims many entities
and individuals, incleding, without limitation, entities and individuals that
may enter into transactions or may have disputes with Client or Client's
related or affiliated entities. Client agrees that (i) itwill not assert that other
KPMG Intenational member firms are prechuded from being engaged by
those other entities or individuals, and (i) those engagements of other
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KPMG Intemational member firms do not conflict with KPMG's.

for Client.
g. Chent will indemnify and hold harmless KPMG. its subsidiaries and
associated and afiliated entities. and their respectve cument and former

way of public or similar format. subject to
prior review of the wording for any such announcement with Client.

25, KPMG InTernaTionaL Memesr Firms.

i - In the case of multi-firm SKPMG il firms.
partners, directors, officers, agents and rep from !
any Claim by any third party (inchuding. without Emitaon, legal services hara shall be entitied to fie bensfits of thase
fees) #rat sleges that KPWG was n 2 conict o iest by proving Terms and Conditions. Client agrees that any Claims that may arise out of
services . of this ion 16(g) sh3s apply the engagement will be brought solely against KPMG, the contracting party,

regardless of the fDrm oi Claim, whether in contract, statute. tort (including,
without limitation. negligence) or otherwise.

h. KPMG encourages Client to obtain legal advice with respect to Client's
rights in connection with potential future conflicts prior to entering into the
engagement.

17. Force MaJEure.

Neither Chient nor KPMG shall be liable for any delays resulting from
circumstances or causes beyond its reasonable control, including, without
limitation, fire or other casualty. act of God, strike or labour dispute, war or

and not against any other KPMG Intemational member firms or such third
party service providers refered to in Section & above.
26. Samsawes-Oxiev Acr.
Except a5 set funh in the Engagemem Letter. Clent acknowledges that
of the of KPMG's reports, advice,
'W*mhe( resulting from the will
not constitute 3 basis for Client's assessment of intemal control over
financial reporting or Client’s evaluation of disclosure ountmls and
procedures, or its compllanne with its principal

other violence, or any law, order or ofany g gency
or authority.

18, InperenoenT ConTrRACTOR.

Itis understood and agreed that each of the parties hereto is an independent
contractor and that neither party is. nor shall be considered to be, an agent,
distributor or representative of the other. Neither party shall act or represent
itseif, directly or by mplication, as an agent of the cther or in any manner
assume or create any cbligation on behalf of. or in the name of, the other.
19 SuRvivaL.

Sections 1, 4{b). 5-18. 18-30. 31(a) and (ch{g). and 33-34 hereof shall
survive the expiration or termination of the engagement.

20. SuccErioR: AND AsziaNs.

These Terms and Conditions and the accompanying Proposal or
Engmemem Lemer shdl be binding upon the parties hereto and their
i and affliated entiies and their
respective partners, d.rems. officers and employees and successors and
permitied assigns. Except as provided below, neither party may assign,
transfer or delegate any of the rights or obligations hersunder without the
prior written consent of the other party. KPMG may assign its rights and
cbligations. hereunder to any affiiate or successor in interest to all or
substantially all of the assets or business of the relevant KPMG practice,
without the consent of Client. In addition, KPMG may arrange for or engage
{as applicable) KPMG affiiates, subsidiaries, related parties, independent
contractors and KPMG Intemational member fims to assist KPMG in
performing the services hereunder.

21, SEvERABILITY.

The prowisions of these Terms and Conditions and the accompanying
Proposal or Engagemant Letter shall only apply to the extent that they are

officer
under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ui ZDCIE {!he
“Act’). The engagement shall not be construed to support Client's
responsibilities under Section 404 of the Act requiring each annual report
filed under Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 1o
contain an internal control report from management.
27. NamowaL InaTrumest 52-108.
Except a5 set furth in the Engagemem Letter. Chient acknowledges that
of th of KPMG's reports, advice,
""uulel i resulting from the engagement will
not constiute a basis for Clienf's evaluation of disdosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial reporting. or its compliance
with its CEQ/CFO certification requirements under Nafional Instrumenf 52-
108, Cerlification of Disclosure in Issuers” Annwal and Inferim Filings,
including those related to the design of disclosure controls and procedures
and internal control over financial reporting.
28, SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING AND OTHER ADVICE.
Except as set forth in the Engagement Letter, the engagement does not
contemplate the provision of speciic accounting adviee or opinions or the
issuance of a written report on the appllcanuﬂ of accounting standards to
specific ions and facts and of Client. Such sensices,
if requested. would be provided pursuant o a separate engagement.
Client should consult with andior engage legal counsel for the purpese of
advising on legal aspects of matters on which KPMG provides its advice and
dmﬁm any legal documents andlor agreements that may be required. To
| or other iders are required,
cnem is exchsively responsible for engaging and paying Such service
providers.
29. Tax SeRwicEs.

3 Ittax work s specifcaly requesied by Client KPMG willperfom the

not p by a v provision of law,
i tandards. If any of these p shalbeheldmbe lwdld

wlﬂ or unenforceable, then the remalnuer of these Terms and Conditions

and the attached Proposal or Engagement Letter, as the case may be, shall

not be affected. impaired or invalidated. and each such provision shall be

valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by Law.

22, EwmiRE AGRESMENT.

These Terms and Conditons and the Proposal or

P with this Section 20. KPMG will base its findings

i on ihe facts and provided to KPMG by Client and
Clients personnel and advisors. KPMG will consider the applicable
provisions of the relevant taxing statutes. the regulations thereunder,
applicable tax treaties and jugicial and administrative interpretations there.of.
In the case of Canadian tax services only, KPMG wil also take into account
all specific proposals to amend such statutes, regulations and treabes
publicly announced prior to the date of KPMG's reports. based on the

Engagement Letter including. without limitation, Exhibits, constitute the
entre agreement between KPMG and Client with respect to the
engagement and supersede all other oral and writen representation,
understandings or agreements relating o the engagement.

23. Governmo Law.

These Terms and Conditons and the accompanying Proposal or
Engagement Letter shall be subject to and governed by the laws of the

that thess will be enacted substantially as
proposed. For certainty. in the case of US tax services, KPMG shall not
take into account any specific proposals to amend such statutes, regulations
and treaties. The authorities refemed to in this subsection 28(3) are subject
to change, retroactively and/or prospectively, and any such changes coukd
affect the validity of KPMG's findings and may result in incremental taxes,
interest or penalties. KPMG's findings will not otherwise take into account
uralnnupaheanychanqes in law or practice, by way of judicial. govemmental

province in which KPMG's principal Canadian office the
engagement is located (without regard to such province's rules on confiicts
of law).

24. PusuiciTy.

Upon the closing of a transaction, KPMG will have the ngln[lmtshal not he

gislate action or ion. Unless Client uests
atherwiss, KPMG will not update tax work to take any such changss into

accou
b. KPMG will use professional judgment in providing advice, and will,
unless Client instructs otherwise, take the position most favourable to Chent
whenever reasonsble. All retums are subject to examination by tax

obliged), at its expense. to publicize its

Teamz AND CONDITIONZ FOR ADVIZORY AND TAX SERVICES
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and KPMG's advice may be audited and challenged by a tax
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Appendix 1: Engagement letter (continued)

authority. Client understands that KPMG's condusicns are not binding on
tax authorites or the courts and should not be construed as a
wamanty or g that the tax ities or courts will
agre= with KPMG's conclusion.
c. Chent is also responsible for eﬂsunng that KPMGs advice is
i strictly in with KPM KPMG
is not responsitle for any penalties or interest assessed against Chent as a
result of a fadure by Client to provide KPMG with accurate and complets:
information.
d. Unless expressly provided for. KPMG's semvices do not include
representing Client in the event of a challenge by the Canada Revenus
Agency or other tax or revenue authorities.

30. Tax Serwices For SEC RecisTEReD AuniT CLENTS anpior US Tax
SeRwicEr

a. I circumstances where the services provided by KPMG hereunder. (i}
inwolve the defivery of any tax sennces, Chent is or is an affiliate of (whether
at the time of the engagement or at any paint thereafter) an enmtyﬂnt S

KPMG for and protect, indemnify and hold hammless KPMG against any
Claim incumed by KPMG (including, without limitation, reasonable legal
fees) as a result of, arising from or in connection with any such reference or
disclosure, unless KPMG has agreed in writing with such third party to
accept responsibility and Eabilty to that third party i respect of the tax
services and the Tax Deliverable. [f any payment is made by Client under
this subsection 30{d), Client shall not seek recovery of that payment from
KPMG at any tme. In this subsection 30{d), KPMG" shall include KPMG
and its subsidiaries, its associated and affiliated entities and their respective
curent and former partners, directors, officers, employess. agents and
representatves. and “Chent” shall include Client, Client's affiliates and any
cther beneficiaries of KPMG's tax services. The foregoing indemnification
chligations shall apply regardiess of the form of Claim, whether in contract,
statute, tort (inciuding. without limitation, negligence) or othemwise.

e Treasury regulations under IRC section 6011 requine taxpayers to
disclose to the IRS their and IRC
section 6707 A imposes stnct penaltieskx mmx:mpllmoe Client agrees to
use commercially reasonable efforts to inform KPMG if Client is required to

registered with the United States Securities an
I"SEC"). and Client or such afiliate is audited by KPMG; ul{u] invive me

disclose any covered by the Letter as a reportable
fransaction mme IRS or to any state or other jurisdiction adopting simdar or

delivery of US tax services, then the p regarding the

KPMG's reports and written acvice set outin Section 5 of these Terms and
Conditions shall not apply and no provision of the Engagement Letter is or
is intended to be construed as a condition of confidentiality in relation to the
tax services to which (i} andlor (i} above are applicable. Further, in respect
of the services to which (i) andior (i) above are apphicable, no provision in
the Engagement Letter or these Terms and Conditions is or is intended to
be construed as a condition of confidentiality within the meaning of Intemal
Revenwe Code (TIRC”) sections 6011. 6111 6112 or the regulations
thereunder, or under any similar or analogous provisions of the laws of a
state or other juisdiction. In particular, Client (and each employee,
representative, or other agent of Client) may disclose to any and all persons,
without limitation of any kind, the tax freatment and tax structure of any
transaction within the scope of the engagement and all materiais of any kind
{including opmions and other tax analyses) that are provided to Chent
relating fo such tax freatment and tax structure. Client also agrees to use
commercially reasonable efforts to inform KPMG of any conditions of
confidentiality imposed by third party adwvisors with respect to any
transaction on which KPMG's advice is requested. Such notfication must
cocur prior to KPMG providing any advice with respect to the transaction.
b. For certainty. Section 5 of these Terms and Conditions shall continug:
o apply in its entirety, and this Section 30 shall not apply. to any tax services
to which subsection 30{a)(i) andior (i) above are not applicable. In this
Section 30, the term “affiliate” is interpreted as that term is used by the SEC
with reference to auditor independence rules.

c. Inrespect of any tax services to which subsection 30{a)ii) or (i) above
are applicable, any reports or advice (Tax Delverable”) released to Chent
in any form cor medium shall be supplied by KPMG on the basis that it is for
Client’s benefit and use only. If Chent refers to or discloses in whole or in
part any Tax Deliverable to any third party, Client shall notify such thard party
in writing as follows: that (i} the tax services performed by KPMG for Client
were designed to mest Client's agreed requirements only, as determined by
Client's needs at the time; (i) any product of the tax services should not be
regarded as suitable to be used or relied upon y party wishing to
acquire any rights against KPMG other than Client; (i) KPMG does not
assume any reﬁpuns\mllt\f m respect of the tax services performed for Client,

- IRC section 8111 requires a matenal advisor with
respecttoar to disclose @
to the IRS by a prescribed date, and IRC section 6112 leﬂuII'EE the material
advisor to maintain, and make available to the IRS upon request, a list of
persons and other information with respect to the transaction. KPMG will
use commercially reasonable efforts to inform Client f KPMG prowides
Client's identifying information to the IRS under IRC section 6111 or 8112,
or to any state or other jurisdiction adopting simiar or analogous provisions,
f. For engagements where services will be provided by a KPMG
Intemational member fim with offices located in Calfonia, Client
acknowledges that certain of KPMG's personnel who may be considered
“owners” under the Calfomnia Act and
regulations (Califomia Business and Professions Code section 5070(a); 18
Cal. Code Regs. sections 51 and 51.1) and who may provide senvices in
connection with the engagement. may not be licensed as certified public
accountants under the laws of any of the various states.
31. Dve Diieence Services (Tax anD TRaNsACTION SERvICES)
a.  The procedures KPMG will perform are limited to those referred to in
the Engagement Letter and its appendices. The procedures KPMG wil
perform are limited in nature and extent to these determined by Client to
meet its needs and, as such, will not necessarily disclose all significant
matters about Target or rewveal emors in the underying information,
instances of fraud, or illegal acts. i any. KPMG provides no assurance and
makes no regarding the
for the purpose of the proposed transaction in the context of which PN
has been engaged or for any other pupose. KPMG's findings will not
constitute recommendations 10 Client as 1o whemer or not Client should
proceed with any proposed sans. In the and
reporiing its findings, KPMG will rely exclusively upon information provided
to KPMG by Target. its personnel and advisors, Client's advisors, and
Client, and any publicly avaiable information KPMG obtains. and will not
independently verify the accuracy or completeness of such information.
KPMG's prncedureﬁ with respect to Target's financial information will be
suh;tarmally \E;s in scope than any audit or other attestation standards,
mitation those by the Auditing and Assurance
Board and the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

any product of the tax serices, or any opinions,
findings or recommendations that KPMG may have formed or made. to any
party except Client: (iv] to the fullest extent permitted by law. KFMG accepts
no kiability in respect of any such matters to any other person; and {v) should
any person or entity except Client choose to rely on the tax services or any
product thereof, that person or entity will do so at ther own nsk.
Motwithstanding the foregeing, (A} in the event of a disclosure made by
Client that is required by law, that is made to a regulatory authority having
jurisdiction over Client. or that is made pursuant to subseo:lnn 3I]| a) above,

Cnnseuuently KPMG expresses no opinion and will provide no other form
on Targef's ive financial i financial

smemems or Target's intemal control over financial reporting.

b. Client agrees to review reports promptly and to advise KPMG on a

timely basis of any additional procedures Clientwould like KPMG to perform

of areas 1o address.

¢ In the svent KPMG performs procedures related to future-crientad

financial information, KPMG will not compile, examine, or apply other

ne such notification shall be required and (B} no such shall be
required with respect to disclosures expressly authorized by the
Engagement Letter.

o such i and, gy will EXpress no
opinion or any other form of or its
accuracy, completeness or presentation format. Future-oriented financial

d. I Client refers or discloses in whole or in part any Tax Deli o
any third party but does not nofify such third party in writing as required in

is based on ions regarding future events, actual results
will uary from the information presented and the variations may be material
d. Unless by Client, KPMG is not cbligated to provide

subsection 30(c) above, Client shall KPMG and
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a copy of the report m Target for the purpose of confiming Target's
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entations conceming the accuracy of the factual
presented in the report. if Chent would like Target to review the report,
KPMG will require Client and Target to indemnify KPMG for any Claims
arising out of or relating to such rewiew on such terms and condibons
specfied by KPMG in its sole discretion. In certain instances, Chent may
request that KPMG's report be distributed to a third party for informational
purposes. KPMG will consider consenting to distribution based on such
factors as the identity of the third party and the third party's intended use of
the repert. f KPMG agrees to the distribution of the report to a third party,
Client agrees to execute and agrees to require the third party to execute an
agreement in the form provided by KPMG regarding the release of
information.

e. Chent expressly acknowledges and agrees that if Client and Target (as
such terms are defined in the Engagement Letter) are the same entity, Ihat
all references herein to “Target” shall be deemed to be

under provincial LLP legislation. KPMG is a
partnersmp but \ts partners have a degree of limited liabilty. A pariner s
not personally lisble for any debts, obligations or liabilites of the LLP that
arise from a negligent act or omission by another pariner or any person
under that other partner's direct supervision or confrol. The legisiation
relating to limited liability parinerships does not, howsver, reduce or imit the
liabdity of the firm. The firm's insurance exceeds the mandatory professional
indemnity nsurance by the relevant
bodies. Subject to the other provisions hereof. all parners of the LLP remain
personally lisble for their own actions andior actions of those they directly
supervise or control.

34, AutermaTive DizpuTe REsoLumon.
The pamEs shall, and shall cause both their and their respective
', affiiates’ and iated entities’ curment md former officers,

“Client™.
f.  The provisions of subsections 3ic)d) and Section & shall apply to
information about Targst provided to KPMG in the course of performing the
services under the Engagement Letter. Client agrees to use all reasonable
efforts to amange for KPMG's access to Target's personnel and advisors,
business offices and financial information as required for KPMG to perform
the services contemplated by the Engagement Letter.

g. If KPMG serves as independent auditors of Target or another party
disclosed to Chent, or provides any other audit or attestation services to
Target or such other party (such as the target of a ma compliance
review or a party having a an
Client hereby acknowledges and agrees that KPMG may e possessicn
of configential information concemning Target or such other party that may
be relevant o Client's due diligence procedures or other services KPMG is
providing to Client under the Engagement Letter and that such i

pariners, directors, wployses, agents and o first atiempt
to settle any dispute arising uut of or relating to the Engagement Letter or
the services provided hersunder (the “Dispute”) through good faith
negoiations in the spirt of mutual cooperation between representatives of
each of the parties with authority to resolve the Dispute. In the event that
the pariies are unable to settle or resclve a Dispute trough negotiation
within 30 days of when one of the parties has notfied the other party of the
Dispute by delwering a notice of dispute, or such longer period as the parties.
may mutually agree upon, such Dispute shall, as promply as is reasonably
practicable, be subject to mediation pursuant to the Mational Mediation
Rules of the ADR. Instiute of Canada, Inc. that are in force at the time the
notice of dispute is deliverad. Any Dispute remaining unresolved for more
than 80 days following the parties first mesting with a mediator or such
Iunael period as the parties may mutually agree upon shall. as promptly as

will not be disclosed to Client unless Target or such ofher party provides
prior written consent to such disclosure or prowides such mformation directly
to Client or to the KPMG engagement team serving Client for purposes of
the services under the Engagement Letter.

32. Loesvine

Unless expressly stated in the Letter, KPMG will not

any lobbying activity, as that term is defined in all applicable federal,
provincial and municipal lobbyist registration statutes and regulations, in
connection with the engagement_In the event that KPMG and Client agree

be resclved by arbitraton pursuant to the
Arhmallun Rules of the ADR Institute of Canada. Inc. {the “Arbitration
Rules”) that are in force at the time the Dispute is subject to arbitration. For
certainty, the parties hereby waive any right they may otherwise have to
bring a court action in connection with a Dispute. The parties also waive any
right they may umemlse havem bring or participate in a class, collective or

ion with 3 Dispute, whether in court or
befors an arbirator. The 3 anbmmﬁs decision shall be final, conclusive and
binding upon the parties. and the parties shall have no nght to appeal or
seek judicial review of the arbitrator's decision. For certainty. the parties
hereby waive any right of appeal which may ctherwise be available under

hat KPMG will undertake lobbying actwity in with the
engagement. such agreement shall be set out in an amendment 1o the
Engagement Letter.

33 LLP.

KPM®G LLP is a registered limited liabiity partnership {"LLF") established
under the laws of the Province of Ontario and, where applicable, has been
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or under the Rules. The place of mediation
and arbitration shall be the city in Canada in which the principal KPMG office
that performed the engagement is located. The language of the mediation
and arbitration shall be English.
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Appendix 2: Other required communications
]

CPAB communication protocol Matters pertaining to independence and confidentiality
The reports available through the following links were published by the We are independent of the School Board, and we have a robust and
Canadian Public Accountability Board to inform Audit Committees and other consistent system of quality control.
stakeholders about the results of quality inspections conducted over the past

Confidentiality of our clients’ information is an on-going professional and

ear:

y business requirement of both KPMG and our overall profession. In addition
+ CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2021 Annual Inspections Results to our internal confirmation of independence of team members, we will

« CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2022 Interim Inspections Results request confirmation and acknowledgement of our policies regarding

confidentiality of the School Board’s information.

*  CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2022 Annual Inspections Results

¢ CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2023 Interim Inspections Results

Engagement terms

Unless you inform us otherwise, we understand that you acknowledge and
agree to the terms of the engagement set out in the engagement letter and
any subsequent amendments as previously provided by management.

A draft report will be provided at the completion of the audit which will
highlight the form and content of the report.

Representations of management Control deficiencies

On a timely basis, identified significant deficiencies will be communicated to
the Committee in writing. Other control deficiencies identified that do not rise
to the level of a significant deficiency will be communicated to management.

We will obtain from management certain representations at the completion
of the audit engagement.

m © 2024 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member 31
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https://www.cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2021-annual-inspections-results-en.pdf?sfvrsn=55b1df58_10
https://cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2022-interim-inspections-result-en.pdf
https://cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/annual-reports/2022-annual-report-en.pdf
https://cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2023-interim-inspections-results-en.pdf
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Appendix 3: Newly effective and upcoming
changes to auditing standards

Effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2022

ISA/CAS 220 ISOM1/CSQM1 ISQM2/GSQM2

(Revised) Quality Quality management for Engagement quality
management for an firms that perform audits or reviews
audit of financial reviews of financial
statements statements or other
assurance or related
services engagements

Effective forperiods beginning on or after December 15, 2023

ISA600/CAS 600

Revised special
considerations —

Audits of group
financial
statements

Independence

Appendices

For more information on newly effective and
upcoming changes to auditing standards o

- see Current Developments
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https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/current-developments.html
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Appendix 4: Audit and assurance insights
]

Our latest thinking on the issues that matter most to Audit Committees, board of directors and management.

KPMG Audit & Assurance Insights Accelerate 2024
Curated research and insights for audit The key issues driving the audit committee

committees and boards. agenda in 2024.

Sustainability Reporting
Resource centre on implementing the new

Board Leadership Centre
Leading insights to help board members
Canadian reporting standards

maximize boardroom opportunities

Current Developments

Series of quarterly publications for Canadian
businesses including Spotlight on IFRS, Canadian ‘

IFRS Breaking News
A monthly Canadian newsletter that provides the latest

insights on accounting, financial reporting and
sustainability reporting.

Assurance & Related Services, Canadian Securities
Matters, and US Outlook reports.

Audit Committee Guide — Canadian Edition

A practical guide providing insight into current
challenges and leading practices shaping audit
committee effectiveness in Canada.

KbinG 5
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https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/audit-assurance-insights.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/market-insights/board-leadership.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/current-developments.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/11/audit-committee-guide-canadian-edition.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2023/11/accelerate.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/environmental-social-and-governance/reporting/cssb-sustainability-reporting.html
https://kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2010/03/international-financial-reporting-standards-ifrs.html
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Appendix 5: Our technology story

B B &

Q)

Streamlined client experience

And deeper insights into your business, translating
to a better audit experience.

Secure

A secure client portal provides centralized, efficient
coordination with your audit team.

Intelligent workflow

An intelligent workflow guides audit teams through
the audit.

Increased precision

Advanced data analytics and automation facilitate a
risk-based audit approach, increasing precision and
reducing your burden.

Audit quality Independence

Risk Baseq

A better
audit
experience

Data Driven
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